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BY FORMER DIRECTOR OF LANDS ROGER TARY AND
FORMER MINISTER OF LANDS PAUL TELUKLUK,
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CANAL DU SECOND Il AND PEPSI SUBDIVISION WATER PROJECTS LUGANVILLE

PREAMBLE

"By the blessing of the upright, the cily is exalted, but it is overthrown by the
mouth of the wicked. "

Proverbs 11v11
SUMMARY

In 1996, the Director of the Finance Department complained to the Ombudsman that
public funds released for two water installation projects were not used in accordance with
the Government of Vanuatu's Finance Regulations. Furthermore, public meney appeared
to have been wasted.

This report concerns the involvement of the government in 2 subdivisions in Luganville in
the island of Santo in 1993-95 and the maladministration and breaches of Leadership
code by the then Director of Lands, Mr Roger Tary and the then Minister of Lands,
Mr Telukluk, (now Assistant Minister of Trade and Ni-Vanuatu business). They granted
contracts for the water installations to a private company, Sowy Leing not on the basis of
their ability or pricing but on the basis of their similar party allegiance and their belonging
to the same island, Malekula, (Wantok system) without following any procedures.

Sowy Leing Company belongs to the Malere family who was also the beneficiary of the
sale of a ship (at a discounted price) by former Minister Bangabiti and Minister

Willie Jimmy (now Deputy Prime Minister) in total breach of the tender procedures’.

The first water installation project at Canal du Segond Il in 1993 was granted without any
tender procedures and costs a total of Vt 10.300.000, Vt1,700,0000 mere than the guote
of the Public works Departement. The result is unsatisfactory, of very poor standard and
only covers half of the land. On the basis of this first bad experience, the government
should have ceased all relationship with this private company.

Instead they were granted another project: the Pepsi subdivision water installation project
in 1985,

This second project turned to catastrophy and is now uncomplete. Its cost estimate was
189 million vatu, three times higher than that of Public Works Department. Mr Tary and
Mr Telukluk still chose Sowy Leing Company to carry out this project in total breach of the
Finance Regulations which had by then been put in place after the commencement of the
first project in 1993.

' Fublic report an tha conduct of Hon Willie Jimmy, Hon Amos Bangabiti and Mr Aimé Maléré in the Sale of
the M. V. Savin Fana, 26 June 1997



More specifically there was no tender board te consider the tenders for the Pepsi
subdivision, no competitive bidding for either of the two projects as they were never
advertised in the press.

The Ombudsman found that:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f

The Government paid a fotal of Vi 19,683,436 to a private company for
work that were of very poor standard and 9,600,000 were actually totally
wasted. In the course of the 2nd subdivision, the Director paid Vt 7 million
more than the worth of the job as estimated by the Public works
Department.

The 2 subdivisions are yet to be completed and the second one has been
totally abandoned with a pipe system too small for water pressure.

political affiliation to UMP and place of origin appeared to be the main
reasons for former Minister, Mr Telukluk, and former Director, Mr Tary,
granting the contracts to Sowy Leing Company instead of price or technical
ability. Their conduct was based on improper motives.

Mr Tary's conduct contravened ALL the tender rules provided under the
Government Finance Regulations and the Public Service Act.

Following their conducts as mentioned above, Mr Tary and Mr Telukluk also
breached the Leadership Code Article 66(1)(a) and 66(2) of the
Constitution.

Sowy Leing Company did not have a proper trading licence and had been
operating illegally, Sowy Leing Company also lacked a qualified and
experienced manager to supervise its operations.

The Ombudsman made the following recommendations in her report:

1

Mr Telukluk should not be considered to hold any ministerial portfolio in any
future government, as he has breached the Leadership Code section 66 of
the Constitution.

Mr Tary should not be considered for any position in any future
government.

The current Director of Lands should make sure that his officers both in
Port Vila and Luganville have access to and follow the Government of
Vanuatu's Finance Regulations; and

The Department of Lands to follow the tender rules in the Finance
Regulations to properly complete the projects. They should not accept
Sowy Leing Company to complete the projects as it has proved itself to be
incapable.
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JURISDICTION

The Constitution and the Ombudsman Act No 14 of 1995 allow me to look into the
actions of the government and other crganisations in which the government has
interests. | can also look into defects in the law or the administration of the law,
discrimination and breaches of the Leadership Code. This includes the conduct of
Mr Roger Tary, the Director of Lands and Mr Paul Telukluk, the Minster of Lands.

The Ombudsman Act still applies to this case even though it has been repealed

recently as the investigation began while the Act was in force. (Interpretation Act
[CAP 132] s. 11).

PURPOSE, SCOPE OF INVESTIGATION AND METHODS USED

The purpose of this report is to present my findings as required by Article 63 of the
Constitution and Section 24 of the Ombudsman Act.

The scope of this investigation is to establish the facts and to determine whether;

. the conduct of Mr Roger Tary in awarding a contract to Sowy Leing
Company was proper;

. the conduct of Mr Paul Telukluk in awarding a contract to Sowy Leing
Company was proper; and

» Mr Tary and Mr Telukluk breached the Leadership Code,

This Office collects infermation and documents by informal request, summons,
letters, interviews and research.

RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS
CONSTITUTION OF THE REPUBLIC OF VANUATU
CONDUCT OF LEADERS

66.(1)  Any person defined as a leader in Article 67 has a duty to
conduct himself in such a way, both in his public and
private life, so as not to-

(a2) place himself in a position in which he has or could
have a conflict of interests or in which the fair
exercise of his public or official duties might be
compromised;

{b) demean his office or position;
{c) allow his integrity to be called into question; or
(d) endanger or diminish respect for and confidence in

the integrity of the Government of the Republic of
Vanuatu.



3.2

3.3.

(2) In particular, a leader shall not use his office for personal
gain or enter into any transaction or engage in any
enterprise or activity that might be expected to give rise to
doubt in the public mind as to whether he is carrying out
or has carried out the duty imposed by subarticle (1).

DEFINITION OF A LEADER

67, For the purposes of this Chapter, a leader means the
President of the Republic, the Prime Minister and other
Ministars, membars of Parliament, and such public
servants, officers of Government agencies and other
officers as may be prescribed by law,

Financial Regulations (FR)

2.2.1

2.2.2

223

224

2.2.9

2.2.6

22T

2.2.8

2.2.9

The FRs Chapter 2 provide that Public Officers must be aware of the
content of the Financial Regulations. Chapter 20 states that all monies
released from the Development Fund must be used in accerdance with
the Government's FRs and other relevant laws safeguarding the use of
public funds. Chapter 22 provides for the tender procedures for specific
works 1o be carried out.

F. R. 3681(3) says al least three (3) written tenders must be submitted
where the cost of a specific work or service is over one (1) millien vatu.

F R 362 provides that tenders will be called by open competitive bidding
and all tenders are to be submitted in sealed envelopes.

F. R. 363 specifies that notice of invitation to tender must be given at
least two (2) weeks before the closing date. This notice must be
advertised. Invitations for tenders over 500,000 vatu must appear in the
press and the Gavernment Gazette,

F. R. 364(1) provides that tenders will be submitted to the secretary of
the Central Tender Board in the Department of Finance.

F. R. 365 specifies clearly who are eligible to be the members of a tender
board. The required number of the board members is also outlined in this
section,

F. R. 367 states that a report on all tenders is to be provided by the
appropriate technical officer to advise the Board. All written contracts
over three (3) million vatu must be approved by the Attorney General
before the contract is signed.

F. R. 368 states that upcn receipt of the technical cfficer's report the
Board shall meet and accept the lowest tender, and that all tenders over
3 million vatu must be approved by the Council of Ministers before they
are awarded.

F. R. 369 states that where there is a contract for the supply of goods or
services the Accounting Officer may authorise variations up to 20% of
the original contract sum. Any variation beyond 20% has to be approved
by the Minister of Finance.

Public Finance Act

Section 3 of the PFA explains the duties of accounting officers as follows:

Every accounting officer and othaer people responsible for the collection,
receipt, custody, issue or payment of public or other funds is subject to
this Act and any order made and is to perform such duties specified in
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4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

this Act or any instructions issued through an order of the Minister
regarding matters of accounting or financial procedure in accerdance with
this Act.

Public Service Act [Cap 129]
Section 11({1) explains an offence and a disciplinary proceeding as follows:

Every officer commits a disciplinary offence for the purposes of
disciplinary proceedings who is guilty of any improper conduct in his
official capacity, or of any other improper conduct which is likely to affect
adversely the performance of his duties or is likely to bring the Public
Service into disrepute.

QUTLINE OF EVENTS
Canal du Segond Il Subdivision Water Installation Project

On 29.03.93, the Public Works Department (PWD) submitted their estimate for
8,674,000 vt. for water installation at Canal du Segond Il subdivision (Refer to
Appendix A). There was no mention of any other company submitting estimates
and it was assumed that the PWD would carry out the projects.

On 14.06.93, Sowy Leing Company (SLC) submitted its estimate to the Port Vila
Department of Lands, bypassing Santc Urban Lands Office (“Urban Lands
Office”) (Refer to Appendix B). The amount was 7,500,000 vatu. There had been
no discussion between Urban Lands Office and the Department of Lands in Port
Vila even though the project was in Santo, and apparently SLC was awarded the
contract and started work on the project. Urban Lands Office only became aware
that the contract had been awarded and work commenced on the project in 1995,

In July 1993 the Finance Regulations came into effect.
Pepsi Subdivision Water Installation Project

On 10.05.94, in a lefter to SLC, Mr Tary stated that he had a discussion with
Mr Telukluk about another project, the Pepsi subdivision project. Payment for the
works on the Pepsi project was to be in three instalment payments (Refer to
Appendix C).

On 16.01.95, PWD was officially requested by Urban Lands Office to submit its
estimate for the Pepsi project.

On 08.02.95, the Council of Ministers approved the use of 30 million vatu for these
water works from unallocated funds from the two urban lands offices, Port Vila
Urban Land Corporation and the Luganville Urban Land Corporation. These
funds were raised through payment of urban land rents in Port Vila and Luganville
(Refer to Appendix D).

The money was transferred to the control of Mr Tary under project no. 471.101 for
the development of the Fresh Wota and Canal du Segond Il subdivisions in
Port Vila and Luganville. Mr Tary was the project manager and he alone signed
all payment vouchers for release of payments to SLC. Mr Willie Jimmy, the
Minister of Finance, authorised Mr Tary to expend the fund (Refer to Appendix E).

By this time, the Urban Lands Office had become aware that there were problems
with the quality of work being done by SLC on the Canal du Segond Il project. On
10.08.95, PWD’s engineer, Mr Philip Amos, was requested by Urban Lands Office
to inspect the works and to make an inspection report. On 28.08.95 Mr Amos
made an inspection report. He discovered: that there appeared to be no working
plan for the project and the pipes used did not have the capacity to serve all the
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properties, and that there was no bedding of 100 mm thick sand as was
necessary to protect the pipes. It became clear that SLC was not competent to
carry out this type of work (Refer to Appendix F).

On 12.09.95 PWD submitted two estimates for the Pepsi subdivision. One
estimate was for the construction of roads at 12,323 515 vatu and a working time
of 12 weeks. The other estimate was for the installation of the water supply at
7,146,906 vatu with a working time of 11 weeks (Refer to Appendix G).

Cn 17.10.95 Urban Lands Office requested Mr Tary tc prepare a contract for the
Pepsi subdivision water installation project. It was also suggested that a local
company, Tukro Plumbing Service, carry out the Pepsi water installation project
as that company was involved in a similar project for National Housing
Corporation at Chapui subdivision in Luganville, and its quotation was similar to
that of PWD (Refer to Appendices H1 and H2).

On 03.11.95 SLC submitted its estimate for the Pepsi subdivision water
installation project. The estimate was 19,206,379 vatu, three times more
expensive than PWD and Tukro's estimates and no working time was stated. This
estimate was accepted (Refer to Appendix ).

Cn 11.12.95, the Director General of Finance informed Mr Tary that Internal Audit
was conducting an investigation in the contracts granted to Sowy Leing Company
to carry out the two water installation projects. The Director further requested the
Ombudsman to investigate the irregularities in the tender procedures under the
Finance Regulations (Refer to Appendices J and K).

Cn 12.12.95, Mr Tary authorised an additional payment of 2,580,746 vatu to SLC
on top of the agreed contract price to cover the costs of extra piping in line with
PWD's inspection report (Refer to A;:C)Fendix L). In normal circumstances, any
contractor submitting a tender is bound legally to finalise the works for the quoted
price. SLC was obliged to carry the additional cost of the extra piping, however in
the end, the government paid a total of 10,080,746 vatu for the Canal du Segond
Il subdivision water installation. The original estimate from PWD was 8,674,700
vatu.

Cn 16.04.96, the PWD Subdivisionner advised Urban Lands Office that the water
pipes that were to be used by SLC for the Pepsi water project were not the proper
cnes. They would not cope with the pressure of the main water supply. 756mm
pipe or more was the correct pipe to be used. This was confirmed by the
Regicnal Engineer for PWD, Mr Amos.

On 28.08.96, PWD Engineer Mr Calum Murray, submitted a brief report on the
Pepsi water project and the works carried out by SLC. It covered the laying of
class 10 poly pipes which are inadequate for the water pressure. The trenches
had been left open for an extended petiod of time and represented a serious
health and safety risk. Water in the trenches was an ideal breeding place for
mosquitos and the soil from the excavation had been dumped onto the road
(Refer to Appendix M).

On 05.09.96, Mr Murray submitted another report on Canal du Segond Il water
project and the work done by SLC. (Refer to Appendix N).

On 09.09.96 the Principal Lands Officer from Urban Lands Office wrote to the
Ombudsman’s Office about SLC. He stated his concerns about both projects and
explained that it was difficult to check the work of SLC because there was no
contract conditions to follow. He also stated that PWD had raised several
complaints regarding the quality of services provided by SLC, and that he himself
had lodged a formal complaint to the Director. (Refer to Appendix O).

On 14,10.96, PWD Subdivisioner wrote to the Ombudsman about SLC getting the
projects, PWD's estimates and the work done by SLC. He explained that PWD
was not aware of any tender board and could not understand how SLC finally got
the two contracts. He further confirmed that the works were not fully completed
and were badly done (Refer to Appendix P).

7
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Information Obtained Through Ombudsman’s Inquiry

The Ombudsman requested that PWD inspect the work of SLC at the Pepsi
subdivision water project and supply the Office of their estimation of the costs
expended by SLC on the project. PWD reported that in their estimation the actual
work done by SLC was valued at 2,694,775 vatu inclusive of materials and labour
(Refer to Appendix Q). SLC was paid 9,602,680 vatu for this work, 7 million vatu
more than it was apparently worth. Regardless of the massive cost of the project,
it was never completed. PWD and Tukro Plumbing Services both estimated that
the whole project could have been completed at a cost of aﬁproximately 7 million
vatu. The amount overpaid was 7 millions. Furthermore the wark already done
was of very peor quality.

During the investigation the Ombudsman discovered that SLC did not have a
licence to undertake construction work. It was not until 8 June 1897 that
Mr Aime Malere, chairman of the company applied for a licence from the
Department of Finance (Refer to Appendix R). By this time his company had
carried out four different water projects without a proper licence. Mr Tary, as
project manager was obliged to ensure that the contract was awarded to a

roperly licensed cnmpanlg and in fact should have been managed by the Urban

ater Supply section of PWD. No action has been taken against Mr Malere's
company.

The Ombudsman discovered that the manager of SLC, Mr Ernest Malere, has no
formal qualifications in either construction or plumbing, and the only experience he
has is through working with SLC on two other projects in Vanuatu.

It was also discovered that procedures in place for setting up development
projects were bypassed for these two projects. The usual procedure is for
projects to be presented to the National Planning Office (NPO). NPO checks the
project to ensure that it is in line with current government policy, checks the basis
of the project estimates and checks the qualifications of the persons or Company
appointed as the project manager to ensure that he or she is capable of managing
the project. After NPO approves the project, it is sent to Naticnal Development
Commission for discussion. It is then forwarded to the Council of Ministers for
approval,

In this particular case the Council of Ministers first approved the funds for the
projects and then documentation was sent to NPO for approval. As the Council of
Ministers had approved the project documentation, NPO felt powerless to alter the
proposals and to check the credentials of the project manager who had been
named.

Mr Tary, as project manager, was obliged to ensure that any agreement made
between his department and any other company was legal and that the proper
tender process was followed. In the case of the Pepsi subdivision water
installation project, proper tender procedures outlined in the Finance Regulations
were not followed. The project was over 3 million vatu and three written tenders
should have been obtained. However, only two were obtained. Tenders should
have been advertised in the press, but this was not done. Tenders were not
submitted to the secretary of the Tender Board as required by the Finance
Regulations, nor was a proper tender board appointed. No written contract was
made nor approved by the Attorney General. No tenders were approved by the
Council of Ministers.

In interviews with the Ombudsman, Mr Telukluk blamed Mr Tary for the
mismanagement of the project, and Mr Tary the former Director blamed
Mr Telukluk. Mr Tary stated that it was their joint decision to offer SLC the
contracts. It is interesting to note that both Mr Telukiuk and Mr Tary are from
Malakula and stron MP supporters. It was also on Mr Telukluk's
recommendation that Mr Tag was appointed to head the Department of Lands
(Refer to Appendix S). SLC is a company owned by the Malere family who
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are also from Malakula and strong UMP Party supporters. Mr Tary was
authorised by the Minister of Finance, Mr Willie Jimmy, a member of UMP, to
expend the 30 million vatu on the two projects.

Mr Tary told the Ombudsman that Mr Telukluk had instructed him to proceed with
these that as 1995 was election year, these projects would be used as poalitical
propaganda.

RESPONSES TO THE PRELIMINARY REPORT

The preliminary report in this matter was issued on 27.01.98 to comply with Article
62(4) of the Constitution and Section 16(4) of the Ombudsman Act. These state
that the person or body complained about must have an opportunity to reply to the
complaints made against them.

Responses to our preliminary report:
Only Mr Steven Tahi responded. He stated that:

(a) he did not know who had instructed that the project be carried out the way it
did;

(b) there was no tender. He could recall that the quotations from the Public
Works Department in Luganville was to find out roughly what the cost of the
project was;

(c) he had no idea how Sowy Leing was qualified for the projects because all
along he had been making negative remarks on their previous
performances on the Canal du Segond Il Project following reports from the
PWD's Enginner, Mr Philip Amas;

(d) Mr Roger Tary has to answer on the standard of the works carried out by
Sowy Leing since he did not consult the Urban Lands office prior to carrying
out the projects.

Mr Tahi went on to state that Mr Tary was negotiatingpand making arrangements
with Sowy Leing through the Department of Lands in Port Vila. The Santo Urban
Lands Office did not get any instructions to deal with the projects and this was
probably because of Mr Tahi opt):fmsing the idea of allowing Sowy Leing to carry
out the projects (Refer to Appendix “P").

Mr Paul Telukluk Minister of Lands and Mr Roger Tary Director of Lands
Department declined to respond.

FINDINGS

Finding 1:  The conduct of Mr Pzul Telukluk former Minister of Lands, and
now Assistant Minister of Trade and Ni-Vanuatu Business was
based on improper motives, irrelevant grounds and blatantly
unreasonable

Mr Telukluk instructed Mr Tary to award the two projects to Sowy Leing Company
which was owned by Malakula people who were supporters of UMP.
Mr Telukluk's electorate was in Malakula. Mr Tary stated that in 1925, he was put
under pressure by Mr Telukluk as that was an election year and Mr Telukluk
wanted the projects to be used as his own pclitical tool. It was blatantly
unreasonable for Mr Tary and Mr Telukluk to accept Sowy Leing Company to do
the second project, the Pepsi subdivision water installation project when the work



6.2

6.3

done on the first project, the Canal du Segond |l water installation project was not
done to the required standard, lack of gualified manpower, experiences and even
lack of a proper licence by Sowy Leing Company.

Finding 2: Mr Paul Telukluk former Minister of Lands, and now Assistant
Minister of Trade and Ni-Vanuatu Business breached the
Leadership Code, Article 66(1)(a) and 66(2) of the Constitution.

Mr Telukluk placed himself in a position of a conflict of interest by instructing and
pressuring Mr Tary to award the contracts to Sowy Leing Company for his own
political benefit, and to favour his own UMP supporters.

Finding3: Mr Roger Tary's conduct (former Director of Lands) was
contrary to law in that he breached the Finance Regulations
and s.3 of the Public Finance Act

. Breach of Finance Regulation 343 and s.3 of Public Finance Act

Mr Tary failed to ensure that the funds released from the Development
Fund were spent on the projects in accordance with the Finance
Regulaticns and the Public Finance Act.

. Breach of Finance Regulation No. 361

Mr Tary breached the Finance Regulation N0.361 by accepting only two
tenders for Pepsi subdivision water installation project. Since the cost of the
project was well over 3 million vatu, they should have obtained three (3)
written tenders as required by Reg.361.

® Breach of Finance Regulation No. 362

Mr Tary breached the Finance Regulation No, 362 for not calling tenders by
open competitive bidding. He simply accepted Sowy Leing Company's
estimates and awarded them the contracts.

“ Breach of Finance Regulation No. 363

Mr Tary breached Finance Regulation No.363 when he asked for tenders
to be sent to the Urban Lands Office. They should have advertised the
tenders in the press and the Government Gazette as the amounts were
superior to VT 500.000 as required by this regulation. They did not do so.

* Breach of Finance Regulation No. 364

Mr Tary breached the Finance Regulation No.364 when he obtained the
tenders from Public Works Department and Sowy Leing Company. He did
not submit all tenders to the Secretary of the Tender Board in the
Department of Finance as required by this regulation. He instead
discussed the matter with Minister Paul Telukluk and they both decided to
award the contracts to Sowy Leing Company.

. Breach of Finance Regulation No, 365

Mr Tary breached the Finance Regulation No.365 because he failed to
ensure there was a proper tender board appointed. He asked for the
tenders and considered the tenders with Minister Paul Telukluk which
resulted in Sowy Leing Company getting the contracts. This Regulation
also specifies the eligible members of a tender board and Mr Tary and
Mr Telukluk were not the appropriate people to approve tenders.

10
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. Breach of Finance Regulation No. 367

Mr Tary breached the Finance Regulation No.367 by not providing written
contracts for the projects since the costs of the works were over 3 million
vatu. The contracts were supposed to be approved by the Attorney
General. No contract was prepared for either project.

© Breach of Finance Regulation No. 368

Mr Tary breached Finance Regulation No.368(1) as he approved and
accepted Sowy Leing Company's high tenders for the two projects. It is the
responsibility of a tender board to consider and approve the lowest
evaluated tender.

® Breach of Finance Regulation No. 368 (2)

Mr Tary breached Finance Regulation No.368(2) for accepting the tenders
over 3 millien vatu and the payments made to Sowy Leing Company were
not approved by the Council of Ministers. It is a requirement under this
Regulation that any tender over 3 million vatu has to be approved by the
Council of Ministers before they are awarded. Mr Tary approved and
awarded the tenders to Sowy Leing Company.

. Breach of Finance Regulation No. 369

Mr Tary breached Finance Regulation No.369 by authorising variation of
the c}riginal sum of 7,500,000 vatu for Canal du Segond Il project when he
authorised an extra payment of 2,580,746 vatu to Sowy Leing Company
because the Company was short of water pipes following their original
quote. Any vatriation is only allowed up to a maximum of 20%. Anything
beyond 20% has to be approved by the Minister of Finance. The above
additional payment authorised by Mr Tary was well beyond 20% and it was
not approved by the Minister of Finance,

Finding 4:  Mr Roger Tary former Director of Lands breached the
Leadership Code, Article 66(1)(a) and 66(2) of the Constitution.

Mr Tary placed himself in a position of a conflict of interest by awarding the
contracts to Sowy Leing Company following Mr Telukluk’s instruction. He did not
follow the proper procedures and demeaned his position by acting for the benefit
of his friends instead of the people of Vanuatu which he was representing and
supposed to serve as public servant.

RECOMMENDATIONS
RECOMMENDATION NO.1: MR TELUKLUK SHOULD NOT BE CONSIDERED TO

HOLD ANY MINISTERIAL PORTFOLIO IN ANY FUTURE
GOVERNMENT

Mr Telukluk has had previous findings of maladministration and breach of the
Leadership code made against him in the following Ombudsman’s public report:

(a) lllegal Ex-Gratia Payments to 23 1988 MPs

Mr Paul Telukluk as Acting Minister of finance in 1997 breached Finance
Regulation No.176 in authorising his own Payment Voucher as quickly as
possible even though the Ex-Gratia payments were not authorised by
Parliament.

11
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(b)

(c)

Improper Sale of Government houses by the Office of the Prime Minister
under Prime Minister Maxime Carlot Korman

Although Mr Telukluk was advised by the Attorney General that the Sale
was improper, he took no appropriate steps to stop the transfers and
registration of the leases. He did it for his own benefit and the benefit of his
political friends in Government then.

Improper Granting of Land Lease Title 11/0E22/016

Mr Telukluk placed himself in a position of conflict of interest between his
official duty and his desire to serve the interest of his relatives when he
used his ministerial power to grant the lease to Mr and Mrs Edmond Rory.
He also breached the Leadership Code under Art. 66 of the Constitution.

The Ombudsman recommended in the reports that Mr Telukluk not to ever
act as Minister of Finance again and not to be appointed to hold any
ministerial porifolio in any future governments,

Mr Telukluk has recently been reappointed Assistant Minister of Trade and
Ni-Vanuatu Business.

RECOMMENDATION NO.2: MR TARY, FORMER DIRECTOR OF LANDS NOT TO

BE CONSIDERED FOR ANY POSITION IN ANY
FUTURE GOVERNMENT

Mr Roger Tary has had previous findings of maladministration and breach of
Leadership Code made against him in the following reports made public by the
Ombudsman’s Office:

(a)

(b)

Improper Sale of Government Houses by the Office of the Prime Minister
under the tormer Pnme MinisteriMr Maxime Carlot Kerman

Mr Tary committed direct misappropriation when he proceeded to his own
transfer of the government house without paying any monies to the
Government for the property. He acted contrary to law and for his own gain
to acquire the house.

Improper Granting of Land Lease Title 11/OE22/016

Mr Tary acted contrary to art. 5 of the Constitution by not treating equally
the first applicant for the above lease. He instead made sure that the
interests of Mr Telukluk's relatives were served when he instructed his
officers to process the lease documents for Mr and Mrs Edmond Rory for
Mr Telukluk's approval. He alsc breached the Leadership Code under art.
67 of the Constitution and s.14(12(g) of the Ombudsman Act.

It was recommended that Mr Tary should not be accepted as Director of
any government departments or government statutory body in future.

Former conviction

Mr Tary was convicted and jailed in July 1996 (when he was still the
Director of Lands) for misappropriation of public funds.

RECOMMENDATION NO.3: THE CURRENT DIRECTOR OF LANDS TO MAKE SURE

THAT HIS OFFICERS BOTH IN PORT VILA AND
SANTO HAVE ACCESS TO AND FOLLOW THE
GOVERNMENT FINANCE REGULATIONS.

12



RECOMMENDATION NO.4: THE DEPARTMENT OF LANDS TO FOLLOW THE
RIGHT PROCEDURES IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
FINANCE REGULATIONS TO PROPERLY COMPLETE
THE PROJECTS. THEY SHOULD NOT ACCEPT SOWY
LEING COMPANY TO COMPLETE THE PROJECTS
AS THEY HAVE PROVED THEMSELVES TO BE
INCAPABLE TO DO A PROPER JOB ACCORDING TO
EXPORT FROM THE GOVERNMENT.

B. CONCLUSION

8.1 To comply with Article 63(2) of the Constitution and Section 22 of the
Ombudsman Act, the Ombudsman requests the Prime Minister and the Minister of
Lands and the Director of Lands to consider these recommendations and to put
them into effect.

8.2 The Office of the Ombudsman must be notified of the decision and proposed steps
to implement these recommendations within thirty (30) days of the date of this
repont

Marie-Noélle FERRIEUX PATTERSON
OMBUDSMAN OF THE REPUBLIC OF VANUATU

13
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REPUBLIQUE DE VANUATU “ REPUBLIC OF VAN
SERVICE DES TERRES LANDS DEPARTMENT,
; PORT VILA PORT VILA’

MINISTERE DES AFFAIRES FONCIERES MINISTRY OF LANDS

PRIVATZ MAIL BAG 607 o . . o
Telephone : 225582 ; DA-FE.': _.4._...th.’. 'tQher,'IBgT..m

ri_ N-O/Ref. . LDU: 409/3/BJ/c.........
V-Y/Ref. ... .. S R S
Mr.james Tegs=a, |
_CGeology Mines & Pural |
Water Supply,
TR 007 TPort Vila. ! ' )
)
,}_ i
: Lands Department had acknowledged your applicaction to Lease Land Ticle
"Part 120 located ar -Pompiduc. area . for -resideniial
purposes. |
At the ULLSC meeting of M—S&Piﬂmhﬂr-"—agaomi.ttee had grand approval
to your application. i
Your Certificate of Registered Negotiator will be ;end to you in due Course.
Thank you for applying. i
¥ |
Regards. o l_ N o ---—1*---—---—
~ 7,
s
:1 BILLIAM JEIO

T
Secretarv of U




V| APPENIIe "B ciigaete. g

[ GOUVERNEMENT GUVEHNMEN |
DE LA REPUBLIQUE OF THE REPUBLIC
DE VANUATU OF VANUATU

MINISTERE DES AFFAIRES FONCIERES, MINISTRY OF LANDS, MINERAL
. DES RESSOURCES MINERALES ET DES PECHES AND FISHERIES
Our Ref: 202/85/1

{\glst April 1994

B Mr. Roger Tary : ;-
| _Directeur des Terres

Objet : Consentement de Bail a Mr. Edmond Rory - Titre
11/0E22/016

Monsieur le Directeur,

Je tiens a t'informer de ma decision, de consentir un Dail, objet
du titre 11/DE22/016 (partie du Titre 120) sis au quartier Stade,

a Mr. Rory Edmond.

Ainsi, je demande "a ce gue ton service fasse le nécessaire,
suivent la procédure normale, d'établir ledit bail pour ma

signature.

Veuillez agréer Monsieur l=a Directecur, mes sinceres salutation.

LT %

\ff-
HTETER OF

Hon. Paul B. Tt¥Lk1NazeaL % R = s
Ministre des R uWEbE“?fiﬁ ‘;f “j"
| AT :
sl il st l.
! ; 3
1 wanuany |
e S l-'g_.'ﬂ-——---‘_“_.__.._-.t-::.‘.

TELEPHONE: ~_P.O. BOX: : .. & TELEX: 1040 VANGOV,

-

LP_:_
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TRANSLATION
Our Ref: 202/85/1 4 September 1897
Mr. Roger Tarry

Director of Lands
Port Vila

Reference: Consentment of Lease to Mr Edmond Rory -
Title 11/0E22/016

Sir,

| would like to inform you of my decision, to consent a lease, Title No. 11/0OE 22/016
(part of Title 120) located at Stade, to mr. Rory Edmond.

Sir, | request that your office does the necessary, following normal procedures, to
prepare the above mentioned lease for my signature.

Yours faithfully.

Hon. Paul B. TELUKLUK
Minister of Natural Resources



e e | REPUBLIC OF VANUATU - REPUBLIQUE DE VANUATU

L EﬂlIE__E_QRT-VILA

Tiie: Tt 11/0E22 /016
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DIRECTOR OF SURVEYS o
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gl ORIGINAL Ao opws aios Seopmipine
_=." ) ) PLAN L‘_"‘: 'f_ﬁlllﬂn.‘ mﬁ"’m M“~h+ oy
- ; ' ™ 1977 n-—-wwm T.B8 mﬂﬂh SosTopo mz p ey 4637
- b = 5



APPENDI NC?

REPUBLIC OF VANUATU
LAND LEASES ACT CAP 163

- LEASE

(Section 31 and 35)

L.R.Form 4

CLASS RESIDENTIAL

R R Ry £ 8 8§t n 8 A RS 8 B

TITLE No. _11/0E22/016 ...,

(PLEASE READ THE NOTES ON BACK PAGE BEFORE COMPLETING THIS FORM)

Full name(s) LESSOR(S) MINISTEE * OF NATUEAL RESOURCES IN
description(s) ACCORDANCE WITH SECTIONS 8 & 9 OF
gndaddresz-'(:.'s‘) THE LAND REFORM REGULATION OF 1980
in Vanuatu (HEREIN AFTER CALLED THIE LESS50R)

- \
| |

MR. EDMOND RORY. AND NELLY RORY

Full namets) LESSEE®)  grape starzon |
description(s) .
and address(es) PORT VILA l
in Vanuaru " ‘
. : - : |
Delete this paragraph if 1. The Lessor(s) has/have received from the Lessee(s) the sum of
inapplicable (amountin words andfigures) .2V, HUNDRED AND FOURTY THREE..
THXISAND VATIL.......cm. VT ....243.000. <.........) ToOr the grant of this
Lease. :
|
* Delete whichever 2. The Lessor(s) lease(s) to the Lessee(s) the land - *comprised in the
asterisked phrase if inapplicable above-mentioned ttle*
OR

*shown edged green in the attached plan certified by the Director of
Surveys and signed by the persons signing this instrument* for
the term of ... FIETY. L30)....cccccovsn . YEATS COMMeENcing on the

S dayof.. 7..19.9%

j“ :
|

3. The Lessee(s) shall pay to the Lassor(s) the *}ﬁ.ﬁle'uﬁﬂh& -~

W *moanthly rent of (amount in words andfigures)

S~ S

N £ reviewable in accordance with the provisions of the Actand payable
Prg on the ...30th..day. July. each. year... (dare(s) rent is to be paid).
in advance.

This Lease is granted subject to the provisions of the Land Leases

* Delete as appropriate 4,
. agreements and conditions specified in the Schedule hereto.

fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ;ﬁff o= (P~ The Lessees holds this Lease as *joint proprietors/*peopsistors-in
deleted, delete whichever C R cemmon-inthe folloudng undivided-shases -

asterisked phrase is inapplicable.
MR

W AR

Actand of any Rule relating to leases made thereunder and to those _
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Dated at .. - 'OR'? VH’ A Lthis _{S— ""L -
day of o g"@ﬂml‘ e 19 T

e e

SIGNED by the Lessor(s) } e bl

in the presence of

SiEnature Of WINESS: o il i
Name of wilness T e A T s e s o) TR 2
Address A i AT A R e P P b S

Teertify that theabovesnamed oo b i e i i
appearcd beforeme at .oeieee T NoR——-
day of ’

* heing identified to me by i

EVE oo romsm s emese s e e A M e B e

* or being personally known to me and that *he/ *she/ *they freely and voluntarily signed and
appeared fully to understand this instrument. i

sDeletetheUnderlinEd = = =000 i ket e i v
altcrnatives Signature, name, designation and seal/stamp
inapplicable of office of person completing certificate.

O
SIGNED by the Lesses(s) H e
MR. EDMOND RORY MRS. NELLY RORY

in the presenee of
Signaturc of WitNess ..o S
Name of witness ~ ANTDINETTE CCULON - Lﬁﬂ‘;l-‘l Qfficer rribien

Vareaes perens rion

Addross LANDS DEPARTMENT. YILA..... S

1 certily that the above-named ... LESSEES.AND, IL'JJLJ-IT TKESS v—

84 e S T

appearcd belore me at _ﬂ..___.EE: Bk ......A:LLL..&..___ ﬂus jlcfj'lh
day of __.,..__._.___.._.S,.Q?ka_mhﬁ.:c_ 19 .84

* boinge identifict 10 ME DY woima i mimmrismsss s issinsinsssmsremmoss sens resees sicassssu onamg s -

I

* Delete the underlined
altcmatives
inapplicable

Lands Officer (Urban)
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ATTORNEY GEN ERAL'S CHAMBERS

hﬂlEhﬂ(JFllLTl[)thﬂ

—

grOM : Attorney General

T0

ouR REF : AG. 10/1/0AS-1w

Acting Dwrector%of Lands YOUR REF :

|
DATE : 10th December 1996.

|
1 refer to your Memorandum of 20th November about the abovementioned.
|

We

SUBJECT | DOV

Re: LAND TITLE 11/0E22/016 - JAMES LESSA. o
: N

. Rev

have two Ppersons involved here. one complied With procedural
formalities and was refused. The Other did not comply with any

procedures but the 1lease Was granted toO him. 1 find that beyond
comprenhension. ,

I think the lease should have been appropriate]y granted to Mr Lessa.

But

as it is the only way to undo the matter ig to have the register

rectified. The matter should be brought to the attention of the Director
of Land Records to enable him to hear the matter under Section g9 of the

Act.

1f that fails, 1 think Mr Lessa should proceed to the Court to

prder rectification under Section 100 of the Act.

1 trust that 1 have been of assistance.

cc:

Ogliver A 5a
Attorney General .

pirector of Land Records
Mrs James Lessa
c/- Geology & Mines.

T )

RECEIVEL

10 DEC 9% f
tAns'd .. i J‘
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REPUBLIWUE UU VARUATU

iz Uth.-I-- S S u N -l\J‘ "'.."-' ’

'SERVICE DES 'rﬁimq's
FORT VILA . ’
MINISTERE DES RESSCURCES NATU!RELLES
T {
Private Mail Beg 080, Port Vila, Vanuatu

_'LAan bemnms.n*r |
- PORTVILA

MINIETRY UF HhTURAL R:SSOURCES

r

zﬁrdiJanér?} 15

|
] . |
Telephons: (678) 22392.!24171:241?2!24320 By 27 : i Dm:_r
Fax: (578) 27708 . - I _ E . {-"7""?ff'"'"'"'"f“
MO/ Ret..... kDY, = 14 /0B22 1016 /1 - e T e, e
T e T : it ”~'Ju%;--n-- £k,
vwnef_l S P LT AR e W
Marie Noelle Fnrrieuk Pﬂktprqan  ' 'y B it Jﬁ; 1’f .5 st ]
Office of the Ombudsman : ' e e e e o
Po Box 126 = i B E B ;‘3'5;" 2 [ ': i '
PORT VILA. -' T R S e L i ¢ g
i | - e e -
Dear Madame, v e Jands
Re: Land title 1:fonz;nte . gtade ares, | T

Port Vila

---———_---n--—---.———._.--..-——.-t_-s.c---

Refers to your lettér of 1ﬁth January 199?~yquf’rbférences
OMB0&3/97-13/03, ouq department wnuld Ilka ta advjée yau;as

follows: that - = f L 5 % Ce

) The anavtmant df Uand prﬁﬂepd Mr.,Rary 1e&5e documeht
through an ipstruction letter from the fcrié? 1n15£é?%;“
of Lands (Paul E. Ielukluk] ins+ru¢ting formﬂr”Di*ectﬂr
of Lands (R, Tary) to' exsclts . a ‘lease ‘o, this|: property
(ree copy of 1ns*rurt1un letter frcm farmer M¢n's%er of

Landa attached)

o tad '.‘-

Z) Roeger Tarv, theffmrmer Dlrectcr of Lands wasj hekhafson
who instructed ‘Mre. Cculan _and Mrs. Muliakil to:- sign
theae ' lease documents: (This ~‘was: coﬁfirmédfnb},lﬁ¥9r

Muliaki on the, ZJTd of: Januﬂry, 1?°? T ¥

2) Mr. Rory d1d i}f upp1y for th1s 1and therefpre thdre
beﬂn.lSBU?d and or

wasn't any Negdtiatorse Cartl 1aatn
granted to him. Jf‘ _ R i -;:1-

4y Mr. Rory gct His valuauicn of’ th15 prup@rty.t rwugh the
Nepariment of Lands Stirvey tsee copy of” their letter to

Mre. Muliaki on|the 23rd Of Mny, 1??ﬁ31 : f,y

:‘ha.nﬁ vou fer wYou®
information regAaridns this

the @ingnatory hereiﬂ under.




(PR S | L . qm
U2 LANDS AT RO, 87

3 gdw&l |
Acting Director of Lande
(Urban) - :

|

' Ccc; First-Se:Eetary "
- Ministry pf Lands

L ® 4
|

|
|
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REPUBLIQUE DU VANUATU

SERVICE DES TERRES

REPUBLIC OF VANUATU

LANDS DEPARTMENT

\\

PORT VILA PORT VILA
MINISTERE DES RESSOURGCES NATURELLES A MINISTRY OF NATURAL RESSOURCES
Private Mail Bag 080, Pert Vila, Vanuatu Mnnday

Teleghone: (678) 22892 / 24171 /24172 / 24820

Fax: (678) 27708

N-O/Ref LDU - 11/0E22/016/EM:wt

Mo Mt BB csnaemassmn Gl sasus

0ffice of the Ombudsman

F.
Port Vila
VANUATU

0. Box 126

Attention: Mr.Jean Marc Pierre

Dear Madam,

Re:

Land Lease title : 11/0E22/018 (Mr & Mrs Rory Edmond

You letter .dated 27th March 1997 ref:0MB 778/97-13/06,
concerning the above reference.

I hereby give you the following answers

1.

2

e

Ly

=1

Yes I was advised verbaly by Former Director of Lands,
Mr . Roger Tary, to execute the lease documents.

Ne application was made by Mr. Rory Edmond, he didn't
follow the-normal procedure of the Lands Departnment.

Yes, he has (see copv of receipt attached).

I was aware of Mr. James Bambu Lessa's certificate, but
former minister of Lands Mr. Paul Barthelemy Telukluk
gave us instruction to process the Lease Documents in
the name of Mr. Rory Edmond (see copy of instruction
letter, dated 2l1st April 1934).

ees 4.

u

Tes, sees 4.

In my opiniocn, the lease document should have been
approgriately granted to Mr. James Bambu Le=ssa.

Date:,7th April.1997. .



+rust that I have been of assistance.

ours Faith fully,

i E _"\
iT# =
~1izapeth Mulaiki

Lands*@fficer.- (Orban Unit)

For Di?e:é:.tnr*,oﬁ-*'l,ands
e e

&
A

Ezz: !
4
00
W=
1 -0

| e
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\\REPUBLIQUE DU VANUATU REPUBLIC OF VANUATU

LANDS DEPARTMENT
PORT VILA

SERVICE DES TERRES
PORT VILA

MINISTERE DES RESSOURCES NATURELLES

MINISTRY OF NATURAL RESSOURCES

Private Mail Bag 090, Port Vila, Vanuatu
Telephone: (678) 22892 / 24171 /24172 | 24820 Date:.....8th _January.. 19%8.

Fax: (678) 27708

N-O /Ref. KPH — 11/0E22/016/AC/TL -

VR T RECEIVED

08 JAN 1998
A: Mnme Marie-Noelle FERRIEUX-PATTERSON
OMBUDSMAN OF THE REPUBLIC OF VANUATU |OMBUDSMAN

ATTENTION: Mr. Pasa TOSUSU
Director of Général Complaints.

S S e

Re: PRELIMINI RIPOT ABAOT ALLEGED IMPROPER
GRANTING OF LAND LEASE TITLE: 11/QEZ22/01é.

e ——— S R S S e e —— ——— =

Madame,

J'ai bien regu voire lettre du 23 Décembre 1997 ainsi
gque le rapport préliminaire relative au bail du titre de
propriete 11/0EZ2Z2/016&.

Comme wvous le savez, le département des Terres
Fonciéres a procédé le document” Bail Résidentiel” le
11/0E22/016 suivant une inestruction du Ministre des Terres
et Resscources Naturelles a 1l'epogque Mr. Paul Barthélemy
TELUKLUK. (FRef .202/85/1 - du 21/04/34).

Le directeur a 1'epogue qui était Mr.Roger Tarvy a demandé a
Mme E. Muliaki de preparer le bail au nom de Edmond Rory
pour la signature du Ministre.

Mr. Edmond RORY n'a jamais fais la demande pour le bail.

Par contre, Mr. James Lesga, comme j'ai pu le constaté
dans le dossier 11/0E22/016; 1lui (James Lessa) a fait la
demande pour acquerir le titre. La demande a eté approuvé

le 27/09/97.

Cette demande a bien eté caonfirmee par lettre
ref.409/3/Bf/cj a James Lessa le 4/10/91 par le secretaire
du comité a 1l'epogue Mr. Billiam Jeiock en méme temps lui
confirmant que le Certificat de Négotiateur lui sera envové.

Je n'ais pas aussi compris pourguol le certificat ne lui a
pas ete délivreé. Je pense que le secretaire du comitée a
1'épogque Mr. Billiam pourrait lui le confirme.






N

-4 RF’PEZ H__Dlx “&”

Elizabeth a établit le bail au nom de Edmond Rory sous le
conseil de Mr. Roger TARY 1lui reppelant que c'est une
décision du Ministre d'éxécuter le bail au nom de HMr. Rory.

Elizabeth m'a remis le document pour le témocigner. Avant de
témoigner 1le document, j'al comme Meme pris 1'initiative
d'aller voir Roger TARY. Celui-ci m'a conseillé encore sur

le fait de 1l'instruction venant du Ministre (P.B. Telukluk?
de procédé le document pour 54 gsignature.

Je pense ava%;- répondu a vos gquestions apparues dans le
rapport préeleminaire, je wvous prie d'agréer, Madame,
1'asgurance de mes sentiments les meilleurs.

Officier

i s e A B

e R S s 1 P ¢ i e
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Lands Department \ RECE!V ED

Private Mailbag 090
Port Vila
Tel. (678) 22892/24171/24172/24820

'] _
Fax: (678) 27708 @MBUDSM&N
5th January 1998

A AR AmA
27 TAN ICLE

Q/Ref: LDU - 11/OE22/016/AC/ft
R =

Mrs Marie-Noelle Ferrieux-Patterson
Ombudsman of the Republic of Vanuatu

Attention: Mr. Pasa Tosusu
Director of General Complaints

Dear Madam,
Re: Preliminary Report on Alleged Improper Granting of
Land Lease Title: 11/0E22/016

Thankyou for vour letter dated 23 December 1997 and the preliminary report concerning Land Lease
Title 11/OE22/016.

As you know, the Lands Department processed the document *Residential Lease
Title” 11/0E22/016 following instructions from the Minister of Lands and Natural Resources at the
time, Mr. Paul Barthélemy Telukluk. (Ref. 202/85/1 - of 21/04/94),

The then Director, Mr. Roger Tary, requested Mrs. E, Muliaki to prepare the Lease in Edmond Rory’s
name for the Minister to sign. Mr. Edmond Rory never applied for the Land L ease Title.

On the other hand, Mr. James Lessa, as [ have noted from the 11/0E22/016 file, applied for the Land
Lease Title. His application was approved on 27/09/97.

Approval of this application was confirmed by a letter, ref. 409/3/Bl/cj, to James Lessa dated
4/10/91 from the then Secretary of the Committee, Mr Billiam Jeiock. The letter also confirmed that
the Registered Negotiator Certificate would be sent to him.

[ do not quite understand why the Certificate was not sent to him ( James Lessa). | think Mr. Billiam
Jeiock would be able to confirm that.

Elizabeth prepared the Lease Title in Edmond Rory’s name as advised by Mr. Roger Tary who told
her that it was the Minister’s decision to have the Lease Title prepared in Mr. Rory's name,

Elizabeth gave me the document for witnessing. Before I signed the document I took the initiative to
see Roger Tary. He agam reminded me of the fact that the instructions came from the Minister (P.B.
Telukiuk) to have the document prepared for his signature,
I hope I have answered the questions from your preliminary report.
Yours faithfully,

(Sgd)

Antomette Coulon
Land Records Officer
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REPLAE BLONG MR EDMOND RORY 12 January 1998

Long 1994 mi stap liv long wan Gavman haus we Gavman emi salem mo wan
Minista emi pem mekem se mi mas aot long haus ia. Mi save tu se famili Lessa
James istap long lan ia mo stap pem rent blong haus long narafala man.

Mi bin approachem Mr Roger Tary mo emi talem long mi se land ia long Stade ino
gat man emi applae from mo sapos mi wantem mi save applae from. Folem toktok
ia nao mi bin fulumap wan applikeisen fom mo givim long Mr Tary. Afta, taem migo
blong jekem applikeisen blong mi Mr Tary emi talem long mi se Minista emi
appruvum applikeisen blong yu finis. Mineva go luk Mr Paul Telukluk from lan ia.

Long saed blong politik mi wantem talem se mi mi no wan sapota blong UMP Pati.
Emi tru tu se brata blong Mr Telukluk emi maretem kasen sista blong mi be mi no
mekem famili bisnis blong karem lan ia, mi folem prosija. Mr Tary emi stap wetem
wan gel blong mi tu be emia tu mi no bin usum blong karem lan ia. Maet tufala |
usum famili rilesensip ia blong givim lan ia long mi be emia mi mi no save.

Mi wantem talem tu se sapos Mr Tary emi bin talem long mi se wan man emi intres

tu long lan ia bambae mi livim mo mi no save applae from blong tekem.

Edmond Rory
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e
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TRANSLATION

REPLY FROM MR EDMOND RORY 12 January 1998

In his reply to preliminary findings, Mr Rory made the following comment:

In 1994 | was working at the Vila Central Hospital and occupying a government
house which was among those government houses sold. A Government Minister
purchased the house | was in occupation so | had to vacate it. | knew Mr James'
family was residing there and paying rent to someone else.

| approached Mr Roger Tary and he advised me that the land was free and that |
should apply for it. Following his advice | made an application and submitted to Mr
Tary. | later on went to check my application with Mr Tary who told me that the
Minister has approved my application. | never approached Mr Telukluk about this
land title.

On political affiliation, | would like to say that | am not a supporter of the UMP Party.
It is true that Mr Telukluk's brother is married 1o my cousin sister but | did not use this
tamily connection to acquire the land, | followed the proper procedure. Mr Tary was
then living with my niece and again | did not use that either, to get the land. | am not
sure, maybe they used that family relationship to allocate the land to me but this is
something outside my knowledge.

| would also like to mention that if Mr Tary had informed me that someone else was

also interested in the land | would have left the land alone and not made any
application to acquire the land.

Edmond Rory
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(a retyped copy of memarandum from Jatfrey Wilfred, Director, Departmant of Finance) {Ca0R3)

MEMORANDUM

Qur Ref: CP.29/1995 11 December 1995
FROM: Director-General of Finance

e TQe - Director
Depariment of Lands

on- Senior Lands Officer, Department of lands, Santo
Regional Manager, Department of Public Works, Santo

INQUIRY - WATER INSTALLATION CANAL, Il & PEPSI
SUB-DIVISION - LUGANVILLE

My internal audit office is conducting an investigation into contracts given for the
above projects.

Under Regulation 22 (5) of the Financial Regulation you are herewith instructed to
provided full documentation of the project and the awarding of contracts. Your
information will include copy of the contract, details of tenders. Tender application
and tender board Minutes.

Under Regulation 368 (2) Please provide a notice of approval by the Council of
Ministers.

Under Regulation 367 (2) you will please provide the authorised approval of the
‘office of the-Attorney General. ' T =i vy P

You were requested to contact my office in regards to the above and which you have
chosen to ignore. | therefore have no alternative but to advise that the above
information is required by the 15th December 1995, otherwise the matter will be
placed with the Office of the Ombudsman.

JEFFREY WILFRED
DIRECTOR GENERAL OF FINANCE



(v) Five payments were made to’ Societe Souileg for work done

on the project and totalling 19,983,436 vatu.

(vi) Please find enclosed several memo’s with reference tg
the quality of work done as reported by Public Works
Department, Santo.

(vii) The payment of 9,602,690 vatu on the 27th November
1995 refers to Water Installation at Pepsi. Haowever
advice from Public Works at Santo is that no work has
been done on Water Installation at that sub-division.
Such payments are contrary to the Financial
Regulations.

(viii) The Director of Lands has been requested to provide
details of Tender process including advertisement,
minutes, and approval by Council of Ministers' as
requested by Financial Regulations. The Director of
Lands has not been able to provide any documentation
or information ocn a tender process being undertaken.
Public Works Department -Santo are unaware of any
Tender procedures being carried out,

(ix) The Director of Lands was also requested to provide
information on any contract between the Government of
Vanuatu and Socieste Scuileg. He cannot produce any such
contract. Under Section 367(2) of the Financial
Regulations any contract greater that 3,000,000 vatuy
must have the approval of the Attorney General. No
contract was submitted for approval.

The conduct of this contracted project has been faulty
in every instance and must be considered with great
suspicicn as to the intentions of the Director of Lands who
refuses to comply with any request either written or verbal
to help with the investigation and to provide documentation
for ic.

I therefcre submit all informatiaon available from this
office and respectiully hand over any further enquiries to
your office.
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JEFFERY WILFRED .

DIRECTOR GENERAL OF FINANCE
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REPORT ON WORK CARRIED OUT ON THE WATER
SUPPLY SYSTEM FOR THE PEPSI SUB-DIVISION
BY SOWILEG

Work Carried Out to Date

The original quotation from the Public Works Department calls for the laying of 2.935
metres of mainline pipe, and the provision of 83 standpipe connections. To date only the
trench excavations have been carried out and the laying of about 500 metres of class 10
poly pipe, which is inadequate for the water pressure, as stated in our letter dated 16/4/96.

These trenches have been left open for an extended period of time and represent a serious
health and safety risk. Standing water in the trenches is an ideal place for mosquitos to
breed. access to houses is mostly by way of wooden planks which get slippery during
rains. and the open trenches cut of some roads which represents a hazard to drivers not
used to driving in the area, Also the spoil from the excavation has just been dumped onto
the road and when the trenches are backfilled the road will require regrading once the

water main has been laid.

Work Remaining

Due to the time the trenches have been left open the sides have collapsed in some areas,
this will require the re-ecavation of some sections. The section of pipe previously laid will
have to be removed and replaced with class 12 poly pipes. and the remaining mainline pipe
will also have to be laid, with a sand surround. 83 connection have also to be carried out,

e hackfilling of the trenches with a suitable material and regrading of the road.




REPORT ON WORK CARRIED OUT ON THE WATER SUPPLY
SYSTEM FOR TEE CANAL DU SEGOND II SUB-DIVISION

Work Carried Out

Have come across letters which are relared to the Canal du Segond work, but refer to it as
waork carried out in the Hospital area. these are enclosed.

By reading through the letters it is apparent the contractor was not following any standard
as set by the Public Works Department. But this may be due to a lack of informarion from
the Department of Urban Lands stating the necessary standard of work. From the original
specification and contract, we would be able to see if the contractor was at fault or if he
was carrying out work as specified by the Deparmment of Urban Lands.

As we carmot find any leters from the Department of Urban Lands it is unknown what
steps they took regarding the points raised by Phil Amos, the regional engineer at the time.
As far as T am aware after consulting Public Works staff who were here at the time. the
works were not altered as per the proposed changes.

The supply is at present fimctional and is giving no problems, but covers only half the
land. as the main water pipe is on one side only and no crossings were mstalled across the

road.

Encl,  lemer 250/94/pafls, TS
memo 1 58/95/mally. 4/9/94
memo 281/95/palls. 1870494
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The Cmbudsman's Office
P.0,. Box 1644
Porrt Vila.

Mr Jean Marc PIERRE.

Attention 1
LS TR A b o

Dear S5ir,

SOWILEG COMPANY.

Refaring to our conversation concerning the above,

this Company has

sonstruct works at Canal du Segond and Fepsi sub—diviszion.

On my return to Luganville last year from Vi
senced on the Canal du Segond Sub—division-

of the contract which secs up the condi
fortunataly, no respond has besn made. My OfZ
work becausa there 1s no C
The Public Work Englneers have raised a lot of

to check their

ta fall on deaf =ars.

I have made a formal complaint to th
future Company W
with Public Projects should go through the ri
sta, teader, tender board meetings and written conktracks.
the above requirements werz 1ot fol-—
was ghven this Jab.

and stated that any

seem to have been taken because,

lowed when once again SOWILEG Company

Therefore, L suggest chat should thera
do concact the Department

af Marural Resources. Hopefully they
ges not posSsess

the abowe,

£ila which this Departue

LEPAS rgRmT
g

LAnns

: _SEavinE
AN . TRAGES

- ?3:_«" :
TAHT Seaven S

af Lands
have some of the documents in

rion concerning this work.
ice found it difficult

ontract condition to go by-

la, work has already cow-
I hawve requested a copy

Un—-

complaints regarding
the qualiry of service SOWILEG is providing. These complaints seem

e Director about these complainCs
ho wishes to engage themsalves
gat procedure. For axam—

No notice

be any information concerning
in Vila and the Minister

their



TRANSLATION OF THE ORIGINAL P

FAROM : NCAH BIHU, Subdivisianer

SANMA PROVINCE

T = OMBUDSMAN, M.N FERRIEUX-PATTERSCN

B.P 126 Ref : 358/86/nb/ls
FPQRT-VILA

DATE : 14/10/97

RE: SEGOND CANAL Il - PEPSI SUBDIVISION WATER SUPPLY
PROJECTS

Cear Madam,

Following your letter dated 4 October 1996 on the above-mentionned subject, [ can
clarify the following :

1.

The Public Works Cepartment does not know abaout any tender beard ;

2. | de not know how Sowileg company finally get the contracts;

(V1]

. It is true that the quctation sucmitted by the Govermment was lower than Scwileg’s

because it was based an the Government rates. | do not understand why the Public
Warks did not get the centracts;

. The werks are not fully completed and Sadly done; i is not the first time this is

happening. | enclese the letter written by the engineer of the Santc Public Werks.
concerming the water suocly installaticn by Sowileg next to the hospital.

. This is all | have to say for now, but | remain available should you wish further

infoarmaticn.

Sincersly yours,

Neah Bihu

.............................

Subdivisioner
Sanma Provircea



GOUYERNEMENT DE Mmﬂmbﬂ YANUATU

PUBLIC WoRrks DEPARTMENT
mmnmmvmm
MEMORANDUM

Dute : 20th October 1997

Owr Ref 346/97

NiRes -

From : PWD Water Suppiy

du :

ta: The Director

R PWD Vil

Re : PEPSI SUBDIVISION WATER SUP!LYPHD.ECI‘HEPORT

9

2.935 mtrs ply pipe @ 615 - 1.80S.025 VT
> .
JCH x 5500 vt per hours @ I0days = 440.000 VT
Truck x 2310wt @ 25days = 57.750 VT
| foreman x 2000 v @ 2Sdays = 50.000 VT
4 labours x 1500wt @ Wdays = 150,000 VT
£128 m3 &
128 m3 sand @ 12.000/, ,= 192,000 VT,

The toral amourm = 2.694. 778 VT
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/_;/ GOUVERNEMENT j ) =

REPUBLIQUE DE VANUATU

FONCTION PUBLIQUE

Sac Postal Privé No.

Rel : ...

~ GOVERNMENT

REPUBLIC OF VANUATU

DEPARTMENT OF
PUBLIC SERVICE

SERVICE DE LA

Private Mail Bag
Port Vila

Fort Vila

PF, No. 1-10721/02/92 - Date: 13 March 1992

Mongsieur Roger TARI
C/- Lands Recards Office
PORT VILA

Dear Mr Tari,

I am pleased tc be able to advise you that following a
recommendation from the Honourable Minister of Lands and
under th2 powers of the Public Sorvice Commigsion delegated
to the Director Public Service Department under the law the
Director of Public Service has now officially approved vour
appointment to the post of a Director of Lands Department of
the Vanuatu Government Public Service.

Your appointment is effective from 16th March 1792.
The post is in grade P.19 of the Public salary scale.

You will enter that grade at the salary point one which is
VT:1.233.552 per annum plus a supplement of VT:30.000 per
annum with effect from the above date.

Your other terms & conditions of service contained in vour
letter of appeointment remain unchanged.

We are certain that you are well aware of the important
respongibilities attached to your pocast and we are confident
that vou will do your utmost to discharge those duties,

I take this chance of congratulating vou uupon your
prcmotion,

Would you please confirm vour socceptance in writing if vou
accept this offer of appointmant.

RECEIVED
1 7 MAR 1292

b

| VANUATU |
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13 March 1992

Mr Roger TARI
C/- Lands Records Office
PORT VILA

Yours sincerely,

| ]
J THYNAA% ; g
Acting Bi 01 of Public Service Department

C : Minisiry of Lands
Lands Department
Land Records
Salary Section
Audit
DPL (2)
Management
Chrono

L R W A —r
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REPUBLIQUE DU VANUATU

SERVICE DES TERRES
LUGANVILLE SANTO

MINISTERE DES RESSCURCES NATURELLES

REPUBLIC OF VANUATU ‘\\"u

LANDS DEPARTMENT
LUGANVILLE SANTO

MINISTRY OF NATURAL RESSOURCES

P.Q.BOX 140, LUGANVILLE, SANTO
TELEPHONE: (678) 36459 / 36314 Date;.04th Pebrua

N-Q /Ref:.. 50T 33/4/64 & 33/5/1/ST/mn

V-Y I Ref ...

P.o0.

PORT VILA.

Box 126,

Dear Mrs Patterson,

RE :

(a)

(b)

(e)

RECOMMENDATIONS NO.9, CANAL DU SEGOND AND PEPSI
SUBDIVISTON WATER PROJECT.

I did not know whoever had instructed the Project to
commence the way it did.

Infact Urban Lands Section in Santo had not made any
Tender. If I can recall this quote expecially from
the Public Works was to find out roughly how much was
the cost of this Project. For some reason, the other
gquote from Tukao came in also which I suspect because
they noticed a request for gquotation was to be made.
These quotes have been submitted to Vila as a Govern—
ment quotation produced by the Government Department
to form the bases on roughly how much this Project can
be carried on a reasonable price. Unfortunately the
Tender has not been made as expected by Urban Lands
Section in Vila. As vou are aware there was no Tender

Notices.

I have no 1idea how Soweleg have been gualified fer
this Project because all along I have made negative
statement on their previcus performance on Canal Du
Segond following reports from Public Works' Engineer,

Philip Amocs.

Roger Tary has to answer this since he carried out
this without any consultation from Urban Lands Section

in Santo.

Y, 2998



—_—

(e) Urban Lands Section in Santo has not accepted the
highest Tender because we were not made aware of any
approval of Company to carry out this Project. T have
Seen no Tender Notices, no Contracts, no price until I
received the copy of the G.P.V. which bears that part
payment has been made. I went to Noah Bihu to discuss
this issue on the same date. I rang Finance Department
through David Schupp to withheld the payment, unfor-
tunately the money has been paid out.

Note that the Director of Lands had been negotiating the
arrangement between Soweleg and the Department through his
0ffice in Vila I suppose. This 0ffice do not have any in-
struction to deal in this matter which I presume is due to
my request not to let Soweleg carry out this future Project
after Philip Amos! report was received. I was in Australia
when the whole issue of Canal Du Segond was processed,

Tours faithfully,

STEVEN TAHT S

Principal Lands Offi;Ef. Urban Unit, Santo.




